
 
 

               
 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES 

SSeerrvviiccee  DDiirreeccttoorr  

LLiinnddaa  FFiisshheerr  
 
GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE SERVICES TEAM 
PO Box 15, Town Hall, Rochdale, OL16 1AB 
DX22831 ROCHDALE 
Tel: (01706) 647474 
Fax: (01706) 924705 
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 
Twitter:       @rochdalecouncil 

To:  All Members of Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee 

Enquiries to: Sian Walter-Browne 
Extension: 
Date: Friday, 2 January 2015 

 
 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
You are requested to attend the meeting of Licensing and Regulatory Committee to be 
held in Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Monday, 12 January 2015 commencing at 6.15 pm. 
 
The agenda and supporting papers are attached.  
 
If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of Interest 
which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please contact staff in the Governance 
and Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Linda Fisher 
Service Director 
 
 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee Membership 2012/13 
Councillor Shakil Ahmed 
Councillor Andy Bell 
Councillor Surinder Biant 
Councillor Susan Emmott 
Councillor John Hartley 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill 
Councillor Peter Rush 
Councillor Billy Sheerin 
Councillor Ann Stott JP 
Councillor Patricia Sullivan 
Councillor June West 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
 

ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 12 January 2015 at 6.15 pm 
 

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Apologies for Absence 

1. Declarations of Interest  1 - 3 

 Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.   
 
Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting. 
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct. 

 

2.   Minutes   

 Minutes of the meeting held on 1st December 2014. 
 

 

3. Setting of the Business Rates  Base 2015/16  4 - 7 

4. Calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2015/16  8 - 12 

5. L and R planning reports  13 - 37 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25
TH

 JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 

PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS). 

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE 

MEETING AND DATE 

 

……………………………. 

 

Agenda item 

Indicate either 

• Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR 

• Personal Interest OR 

• Personal and Prejudicial interest 

Nature of Interest 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 

LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE. 

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING 

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests 
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners. 
 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain 
 

Sponsorship 
 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.   

Contracts 
 

Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council -  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land 
 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council. 

Licences 
 

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer. 

Corporate Tenancies 
 

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) -  
(a) the landlord is the Council: and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where - 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and 
(b) either – 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
Personal Interests 
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect -  
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority; 
(b)  any body - 

(i)  exercising functions of a public nature; 
(ii)  directed to charitable purposes; or 
(iii)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union),  
of which you are in a position of general control or management; 
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25. 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would  reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business - 
(a)  Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or 
 (b)  Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above. 
 
 
MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE 
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25

TH
 JULY 2012. 

 Page 3



 
 

  
 
Subject:  Setting of the Business Rates  Base 
2015/16  

Status: For Publication 

Report to: Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Allen Brett 
 

Date: Monday, 12 January 2015 
  

Report of: Director - Finance Services 
 
Author Email:    
Keith.Mackenzie@Rochdale.Gov.UK 

Author: Keith Mackenzie 
 
Tel: Tel: 01706 926003 

 
Comments from Statutory 
Officers: 

Monitoring Officer:   Yes 
Section 151 Officer: Yes 

Key Decision:     
 
1. Purpose of the report 

1.1 To seek approval for the setting of the business rates baseline for 2015/16 in 
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and the Non-
Domestic Rating Regulations 2013. 

 
1.2 To approve the precept payment dates for 2015/16. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1       Members are requested to approve the draft business rate baseline figure of 

£30.099m for 2015/16 subject to any changes which may result from the issue 
of the Department for Communities & Local Government (DCLG) guidance on 
completion of the 2015/16 business baseline, due in January 2015. 

 
2.2 Members are requested to approve that the Director of Finance, in consultation 

with the Portfolio Holder for Finance, be authorised to conclude and agree the 
final business rate baseline return (NNDR1) due on 31st January 2015 should 
the final information yet to be received from DCLG change the baseline figure 
for 2015/16. 

 
2.3 That the proposed precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 3.10 be 

approved, subject to consultation with the Greater Manchester (GM) Fire & 
Rescue Authority. 

 
 

3. Background 
3.1 From 1st April 2013 the business rates retention scheme (BRRS) was 

introduced as part of the move to localise and stimulate business growth at a 
local level. Under the BRRS the Authority pays 50% of its business rates 
income to Central Government, 1% to GM Fire & Rescue Authority and retains 
the remaining 49%.  

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 
 

3.2. Central Government has assessed potential retained business rates income 
and provided a “top up” grant within the Revenue Support settlement to bridge 
the gap in funding as a result of the move to the BRRS. 

 
3.3. The Business Rates Retention Scheme is accounted for within the Collection 

Fund. This account reflects the statutory requirements for the Council to 
maintain a separate Collection Fund, in relation to the operation of the 
Business Rates Retention Scheme and Council Tax. The Fund records all the 
transactions for billing, payments by council tax/business rates payers, reliefs 
granted, write offs and payments to the precept authorities, Rochdale BC and 
Central Government. At the end of each year the surplus/deficit on the Fund is 
charged to the Council, Central Government and GM Fire & Rescue Authority 
on the basis of their level of precept on the Collection fund. 

 
3.4 In January of each year the Authority is required to set an estimated business 

rates income yield for the following year which is to be used to inform Central 
Government and GM Fire and Rescue Authority of their precept on the Fund on 
the basis of: 

 
  Central Government                              50% 
  Rochdale BC – General Fund                49% 
  GM Fire & Rescue Authority                    1%     
 

3.5 A Central Government standard form is used (known as the NNDR1) to ensure 
a common approach for the collection of the business rates income forecast. 
The return used in the completion of the 2015/16 estimate has not yet been 
made available by DCLG. The setting of the baseline for 2015/16 has been 
prepared on a draft basis until further clarification is received from DCLG. 

 
Setting of the Business Rates Baseline 
 
3.6 A final NNDR1 must be agreed by the Chief Financial Officer and returned to 

DCLG by 31st January each year.  The final return must include: 
 

a) the anticipated gross income to be billed to businesses in 2015/16 
b) estimates for any growth in business rates anticipated in 2015/16, net of 

any demolitions 
c) forecast  for any increases in business rates relief including empty 

reliefs 
d) changes in amounts to be collected should those premises that still 

have outstanding appeals from the rateable value changes in 2005 and 
2010 be resolved. 
 

Work is currently underway by the Revenues & Benefits Service to finalise the 
forecasts. A final baseline position for 2015/16 cannot be included in this report 
at this point, as the final guidance isn’t due to be issued by DCLG until mid-
January 2015. 
 

3.7 The Autumn Statement by the Chancellor approved the 2015/16 business rate 
multiplier being capped at 2% for businesses with a rateable value less than 
£18,000, this is expected to take the multiplier to £0.480. For properties with a 
rateable value above £18,000 the multiplier is expected to be £0.493, a 2.3% 
increase. Using the provisional business rates multipliers the business rates 
baseline for 2015/16 would be £61.427m split between: 

 
 

Page 5



 
 

Central Government      £30.714m 
Rochdale BC     £30.099m 
GM Fire & Rescue Authority                £  0.614m 
Total      £61.427m 
 

3.8 At the end of the 2015/16 financial year the actual business rates collected will 
be compared to the estimated baseline amount provided in the NNDR1. Any 
differences between the estimate and the actual collected will be adjusted as 
part of setting the 2016/17 business rates baseline payments. 

 
Precept Payment Dates 2015/16 
 
3.9 The business rates retention regulations require that the local authority should 

agree a precept schedule with the major precept authority, which in the case of 
Rochdale Council will be Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Authority.  

 
3.10 It is proposed that the same payments schedule be adopted as set out for the 

council tax precept which is detailed below, subject to agreement by the Fire & 
Rescue Authority. 

 

23rd April 2015 23rd October 2015 

26th May 2015 23rd November 2015 

23rd June 2015 23rd December 2015 

23rd July 2015 25th January 2016 

24th August 2015 23rd February 2016 

23rd September 2015 23rd March 2016 

 
Alternatives considered 
3.11 No alternative available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to estimate 

and set a Business Rates Baseline each financial year. 
  

4. Financial Implications 
4.1 The shift from NNDR contributions from the national pool to receiving a 

percentage of the business rates collected introduces significant volatility in the 
amount of resources available for the local authority. The current economic 
climate has seen numerous business failures and demolitions which impact on 
the business rates income collected. Under the previous funding system the 
impact for the local authority was minimised as the local authority was 
guaranteed a level of income regardless of the amount collected. The new 
system introduces significant risk for the local authority in relation to collection. 
If the local authority collects less than the amount estimated, 49% of this 
reduction will be borne by the local authority. 

 
4.2 There are still a number of rateable value appeals outstanding where 

businesses have appealed against the values set by the Valuation Office 
Agency in 2005 and 2010. The backlog of appeals has a significant impact for 
the business rates to be collected and retained by the local authority, including 
the costs of any backdated amounts. A provision has been created from 
business rates income to support the ongoing mitigation of this risk. 

 
4.3 Business can still appeal against rateable values that were set in 2010. If they 

are successful, the change is effective from 2010 which has a significant 
financial impact on the Council. In the 2014 Autumn Statement, the Chancellor 
has announced that appeals made after 1st April 2015 and before 31st March 
2016 will only be backdated to 1st April 2015, which will lessen the financial 
impact. 

Page 6



 
 

 
5.   Legal Implications 

5.1 The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) 
require billing authorities to notify the Secretary of State and their major 
precepting authority of their calculation of non-domestic rating income for 
2015/16 and the estimated surplus/deficit on the Collection Fund by 31st 
January each year. 

 
5.2 The figures are produced subject to the DCLG guidance being published and 

provided, following which the figure in this report may have to be revisited. 
 
5.3 Approval is obtained from the Licensing & Regulatory Committee as approved 

by Full Council on the 4th June 2014. 
 

6.  Personnel Implications 
6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report. 

 
7. Corporate Priorities 

7.1 This report is part of the budget fixing process and resources allocated in line 
with the corporate priorities of the Council, as determined by budget fixing 
council. 

 
8. Risk Assessment Implications  

8.1  There are a number of financial risks which have been highlighted earlier in the 
report. 

 
9. Equalities Impacts 

9.1  Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 

 There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
9.2  Equality/Community Impact Assessments 

 

 There are no equality/community issues arising from this report. 
 
 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 7



 
 

  
 
Subject:  Calculation of the Council Tax Base 
for 2015/16  

Status: For Publication 

Report to: Licensing and Regulatory Committee 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Allen Brett 
 

Date: Monday, 12 January 2015 
  

Report of: Director - Finance Services 
 
Author Email:    
Keith.Mackenzie@Rochdale.Gov.UK 

Author: Keith Mackenzie 
 
Tel: Tel: 01706 926003 

 
Comments from Statutory 
Officers: 

Monitoring Officer:   Yes 
Section 151 Officer: Yes  

Key Decision:     
 
1. Purpose of the report 

1.1 To seek approval to the statutory council tax base calculation for 2015/16, 
calculated in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012. 

 
1.2 To approve the precept payment dates for 2015/16. 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1 For the purposes of Section 33 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as 

amended), the council tax base expressed as “band D equivalent properties”, 
be approved at 50,744 for 2015/16 (50,497 2014/15). 

 
2.2 The proposed precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 3.16 be 

approved. 
 
3. Calculation of Council Tax Base and Schedule of Precept Payment Dates 
 

Statutory Requirements 
 

3.1 Rochdale Borough Council, as a council tax billing authority, is required each 
year to make statutory calculations specified in Section 33 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Local Authorities (Calculation 
of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 require authorities to calculate 
the council tax base (number of taxable properties), expressed as "band D 
equivalent properties". Approval of these calculations is required by 31st January 
in each financial year. 

 
3.2 The calculation of the tax base starts with the number of recorded properties in 

each tax band (A to H) at 14th November 2014, adjusted for: changes expected 
to occur up to 31st March 2016 as a result of appeals, demolition and new home 
construction; estimated number of disabled persons reductions; and discounts 
allowed for single person households, students and empty/exempt properties. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
 

3.3 Following on from the figure produced in 3.2 above, the tax base calculation for 
2015/16 also takes account of the additional charges resulting from the local 
discount scheme in place for empty properties and second homes; along with 
the impact of the Local Council Tax Support scheme. 

 
3.4 This calculated number of properties in each band is then multiplied by a factor 

specified in the regulations to give an "equivalent number of band D properties" 
and then by an estimate of the likely collection rate for 2015/16 to give the tax 
base. 

 
3.5 The council tax base is used by the precepting authorities (Police and Fire) to 

apportion their net expenditure to their constituent authorities and by Rochdale 
Borough Council to set the level of council tax for 2015/16. 

 
3.6 The Council's net budgeted spending, including precepts and levies and after 

taking account of receipts of revenue support grant and business rate income, is 
divided by the tax base to produce the council tax level for band D properties, 
which is the headline tax figure. 

 
Calculation of the Tax Base 
 

3.7 The detailed calculation of the tax base is set out in Appendix 1. 
 

3.8 The number of properties has increased by 417 from 91,572 to 91,989 in the 
period ending on 14th November 2014. In the previous two years the net change 
had been increases of 347 (2012) and 396 (2013). There continues to be a level 
of new build across the Borough, and whilst some of this is offset by demolitions, 
this further increase shows a continuing modest growth in the overall property 
numbers. 

 

3.9 The number of council tax exemptions has shown a decrease to 1,438 properties 
(1,490 in 2013) – this reduction is mainly as a result of Registered Providers 
(Rochdale Borougwide Housing, etc..) bringing empty homes back into use.  

 
3.10 The number of households in receipt of 25% single person discount has shown a 

decrease as a result of a recent review exercise, falling to 34,661 properties 
(35,305 in 2013). 

 
3.11 The adjustment for the council tax technical reforms, in respect of charges on 

empty properties and second homes, is in line with the charge structure 
approved by Cabinet on 18th November 2013. 

 
3.12 The adjustment for the Local Council Tax Support scheme is based upon the 

local scheme options, approved by Full Council on 27th November 2014. 
 

3.13 The overall estimated collection rate has been increased to 95.5% (95.0% in 
2014/15) to reflect the changes being made to the Local Council Tax Support 
scheme in 2015/16. 

 
3.14 Finally this means that in 2015/16 every £50,744 of net expenditure, after taking 

account of revenue support grant and business rate income, will require a 
council tax of £1. 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



 
 

Precept Payment Dates 2015/16 
 

3.15 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to be 
adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing authorities to 
notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments schedule. This notification 
must be given before 31st December in respect of the following financial year. 
The final payments schedule is then confirmed by 31st January. 

 
3.16 The proposed payments schedule, is in line with the one operating in the current 

year, which was agreed by all Greater Manchester Authorities: 
 

23rd April 2015 23rd October 2015 

26th May 2015 23rd November 2015 

23rd June 2015 23rd December 2015 

23rd July 2015 25th January 2016 

24th August 2015 23rd February 2016 

23rd September 2015 23rd March 2016 

 
Alternatives considered 
3.17 No alternative available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to calculate 

and approve a Council Tax Base each financial year. 
 

4. Financial Implications 
4.1 Please see main body of the report. 

 
5.   Legal Implications 

5.1 Rochdale Borough Council, as a council tax billing authority, is required each 
year to make statutory calculations specified in Section 33 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 require 
authorities to calculate the council tax base (number of taxable properties), 
expressed as "band D equivalent properties". Approval of these calculations is 
required by 31st January in each financial year. This report complies with those 
requirements and recommends approval as set out in the report. 

 
5.2 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to be 

adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing authorities to 
notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments schedule. This notification 
must be given before the 31st December in respect of the following financial 
year. The final payments schedule is then confirmed by 31st January. 

 
5.3 The calculation of the tax base has to be made by 31st January and notified to 

the major precepting and levying authorities. Under Section 84 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 the determination can be delegated to a committee or 
sub-committee in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972; and the Licensing & Regulatory Committee has been determined as the 
appropriate body by a decision of Full Council on 4th June 2014. 

 
6.  Personnel Implications 

6.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report. 
 
7. Corporate Priorities 

7.1 This report is part of the budget fixing process and resources allocated in line 
with the corporate priorities of the Council, as determined by budget fixing 
council. 

 

Page 10



 
 

8. Risk Assessment Implications  
8.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 

report. 
 

9. Equalities Impacts 
9.1  Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment 
 There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report. 
 
9.2  Equality/Community Impact Assessments 
 There are no equality/community issues arising from this report. 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Place of Inspection 

Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme - 
review of Scheme 
2015/16 

 
http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s31506/Local%20
Council%20Tax%20Support%20Scheme%20-
%20review%20of%20Scheme%20201516%2024112014%20C
abinet.pdf 
 

Council Tax 

Technical 

Reforms – 

Review of empty 

discounts 

http://democracy.rochdale.gov.uk/documents/s20127/Council%
20Tax%20Technical%20Reforms%20-
%20Review%20of%20empty%20discounts%20for%202014%2
015v2.pdf 

 

 
 

Page 11



CALCULATION OF COUNCIL TAX BASE FOR 2015/16 

 
1.1 Property Details 
  

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

 
Band 

 
Valuation 

Up to 

 
Properties 

@ 14
th

 
November 

2014 

 
Adjusted number of properties, 
after discounts, exemptions etc 

(see 1.3 below) 
 

 
Adjustment for ‘Local 
Council Tax Support’ 

Scheme 
 

 
Net Adjusted 

number of 
properties 

(4+5) 

 
Factor 

 
Band D 

Equivalent 

A (Disabled) £40,000 88 82 -23 59 5/9 33 

A £40,000 51,030 43,249 -13,423 29,826 6/9 19,884 

B £52,000 15,054 13,714 -1,559 12,155 7/9 9,454 

C £68,000 11,594 10,740 -758 9,982 8/9 8,873 

D £88,000 7,621 7,003 -316 6,687 1 6,687 

E £120,000 4,117 3,892 -77 3,815 11/9 4,663 

F £160,000 1,603 1,538 -28 1,510 13/9 2,180 

G £320,000 847 800 -17 783 15/9 1,305 

H over £320,000 35 28 0 28 18/9 56 

TOTAL  91,989 81,046 -16,201 64,845  53,135 

 
1.2 Applying a 95.5% collection rate gives a 2015/16 statutory tax base calculation of 50,744 band D equivalent properties (53,135 x 95.5%). 
 
1.3 The total number of properties at 91,989 (col. 3) on 14

th
 November 2014 compares to 91,572 last year, reflecting that new house building developments 

within the Borough were greater than demolitions during the year; resulting in a modest net growth in the overall number of properties. Of this total: 
 

Properties at 14
th
 November  2014 91,989 

Forecast for net new growth (after demolitions)      300 

Forecast for exemptions (1,663) 

Forecast for single person discounts and empty discounts adjustments (9,580) 

Net adjusted number of properties to be used in calculation of the council tax base 81,046 

 
1.4 To calculate the statutory tax base, the number of band D equivalent properties (col. 8) is multiplied by the estimated eventual collection rate for the year. 

The estimated collection rate used for 2015/16 is 95.5% (95.0% in 2014/15). 
 

1.5 Variations in the outturn tax base due to under/over achievement of the collection rate or wrong assumptions in calculating the number of band D equivalent 
properties will result in a surplus or deficit on the collection fund. This is shared between Rochdale Borough Council and the precepting bodies. 

 

P
age 12



 
 

  
 

Subject:  Submitted Planning Applications Status:  For Publication 

Report to:  Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee 

 
  

Date:         12th January 2015  

Report of: Director of Economy and 
Environment 
 

Author: See individual agenda reports 
 

 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
1.1 To provide recommendations to the Committee on planning applications or 

related consents submitted to the Council and requiring the consideration 

and/or determination of the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
approved Scheme of Delegation. 

 
1.2 To provide information on any other planning or development related 

matters which may affect the work of the Committee. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Recommendations in respect of individual planning applications are as 

detailed in the following papers. 

 
3. STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

 
3.1 The submitted applications on this agenda are to be determined in 

accordance with the provisions of relevant legislation, including the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990, Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990, Planning and Compensation Act 1991, Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Planning Act 2008, Localism Act 2012 and 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management) Procedure 
Order 2010 together with any Circulars and Regulations which support that 

legislation.   
 

3.2 Planning law requires that applications be determined in accordance with 
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
Where relevant, any such material considerations will be referred to in the 

report. 
 

 
 

 

ITEM NO. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

     The Development Plan 
 

3.3 All planning applications referred to in this report have been assessed 
against the relevant policies and proposals of the development plan for the 

Borough (currently the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan 2006) 
and any Supplementary Planning Documents or Guidance adopted by the 
Council.   

 
 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
3.4 In addition, in assessing the submitted planning applications, there is a 

requirement to have regard to relevant national policies as set out within 

the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) the policies of which are a 
material consideration.  Where relevant, the provisions of the NPPF and any 

other relevant national guidance will be referred to in the report. 
 
4. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 
4.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members and Officers 

dealing with Planning Matters.  Members and Officers are required to have 
full regard to the Code in discharging their responsibilities and duties in 
relation to planning matters on behalf of the Council.  The Code seeks to 

ensure that all decision making is governed by an open and transparent 
process and represents a standard against which the conduct of Officers 

and Member sitting on the Committee will be judged.   
 
4.2 A Declaration of Member Interests Register is taken prior to the 

commencement of the Committee meeting.  Advice on whether any 
Member sitting on the Committee ought to declare any interest on any item 

on the submitted agenda should be obtained from the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services or the Chief Planning Officer.   

 

4.3 The Council’s Standards Committee will monitor the operation of this Code 
of Conduct.    

 
5. EQUALITIES IMPACTS 

 
5.1 The above Acts require Local Planning Authorities to consider planning 

applications on their individual merits having regard to the development 

plan and other material planning considerations. 
 

5.2 The Equality Act 2010 protects people from discrimination on the basis of 
certain characteristics which are known as protected characteristics.  These 
protected characteristics are Age, Disability, Gender Reassignment, 

Marriage or Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, Religion or 
Belief, Sex (Gender), Sexual Orientation, socio-economic status and Carer. 

 
5.3 In applying the Equality Act 2010, the Council is required to consider the 

effects of its decisions on different groups protected from discrimination, 

including a duty to make reasonable adjustments.  In taking account of all 
material planning considerations, including Council policy as set out in the 

Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, the 

Page 14



Service Director (Planning and Regulation Services) has concluded all 

opportunities to promote equality through the planning process have been 
taken, or where adjustments cannot be made, these are justified on the 

basis of the planning merits of the development proposal.   
 

5.4 The Rochdale and District Disabled Access Working Group may comment on 
relevant planning applications. Where comments are received, these will be 
included within the reported to Committee.  Consideration is given in 

designing access when dealing with the planning applications. Where 
applicable, any issues relating to these matters or other equal opportunity 

matters will be referred to in individual planning application reports. 
 
6.      Human Rights Act 1998 considerations 

 
6.1    The submitted applications need to be considered against the provisions of 

the Human Rights Act 1998.  Under Article 6, the applications (and those 
third parties, including local residents, who have made representations) 
have the right to a fair hearing and to this end the Committee must give full 

consideration to their comments. 
 

6.2 Article 8 and Protocol 1 Article 1 confer(s) a right of respect or a person’s 
home, other land and business assets.  In taking account of all material 
considerations, including Council policy as set out in the Unitary 

Development Plan, the Service Director (Planning and Regulation Services) 
has concluded that some rights conferred by these Articles on the 

applicant(s)/objectors/residents and other occupiers and owners of nearby 
land that might be affected may be interfered with but that that 
interference is in accordance with the law and justified by being in the 

public interest and on the basis of the planning merits of the development 
proposal.  He believes that any restriction on these rights posed by 

approval of the application is proportionate to the wider benefits of approval 
and that such a decision falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the 
Council under the Town and Country Planning Acts. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 15



 

Background Papers 
 

      The background papers relevant to the planning applications to be considered on 
this agenda will include:- 

 
 1.  The Planning application file and its contents which will include: 

 
 i)  The planning application form and supporting information, together with 

scaled drawings/plans and relevant statutory certificates. 

ii) Letters of response from statutory and other consultees who may have 
been consulted or commented on the planning application 

iii) Letters and documents received from interested parties. 
iv) Notes of telephone conversations, meetings and any information received 

and of relevance to the submitted proposal 

  
 2. For any previous planning application referred to in the agenda report or in the 

application file, the planning application forms and the decision on that proposal 
 
 3. Such other papers (if any) received after the preparation of individual reports 

on planning applications on this agenda (to be reported verbally at the meeting). 
 

       4. Any other guidance or procedural documents adopted by the Council and of 
relevance to the recommendation and/or determination of any submitted 
planning applications or related consents 

 
For further information about this report, or if you wish to see any background 
papers please contact: Sharon Hill, Senior Business Support Officer, in Economy and 
Environment, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
 

Telephone (01706) 924305 or via the online planning services at:  
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning 

 

 

 
 

Page 16



Application Number: 14/01194/FUL    Ward: Milkstone And Deeplish       
 

 
Proposal: Erection of a Class A1 foodstore and a 'flexible use' retail unit (Classes A1, 
A2, A3 or A5) together with associated vehicular access, car parking, servicing area 
and hard and soft landscaping. 
 

Site Address: Land Bounded By Mellor Street, River Roch And River Spodden, 
Rochdale     
 

Applicant:  
                  Aldi Stores Ltd 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Grant subject to conditions 
 

 
 
UPDATE 
 

At the meeting of Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee on 16 December 2014 
Members of that Committee resolved that they were minded to approve the application 
and refer it to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee in accordance with the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. This was subject to the outstanding objection from 

Page 17



the Environment Agency being resolved prior to the meeting of Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee.   
 
At the time of report preparation, due to the foreshortened reporting times as a result 
of the seasonal holidays, the discussions between the applicant and the Environment 
Agency remain on-going. It is however expected that the objection can be overcome 
and that written confirmation of this will be provided to officers in the New Year. It 
should be noted that a similar objection was raised to the previous, extant consent and 
was overcome. The final comments of the Environment Agency and any suggested 
conditions will be reported verbally to Members at the Committee Meeting. 
 
DELEGATION SCHEME 
 

Members have delegated powers to determine the application, using reasonable 
planning grounds.   
 
SITE 
 

The site is located on Mellor Street in Rochdale in close proximity to the junction with 
Manchester Road and St. Mary’s Gate (A58).  Adjoining the northern and eastern 
boundaries often site lie two rivers (Roch and Spodden). The Spodden flows into the 
Roch at the site’s north eastern boundary. To the west of the site lies a large Asda 
Supermarket and a PC World Store.  Rochdale Town Centre lies a 5 minute walk from 
the application site on the opposite side of the A58. 
 
The total planning application site red line area extends to 2.08 Acres (0.84HA). There 
is an small parcel of land adjacent to the site reserved for future development which is 
not included within the planning application site; this is positioned west of the 
application site at the junction of Mellor Street and College Road.   
 

The site has a clearly identified boundary, with temporary hoardings to the southern 
pedestrian footpath boundary off Mellor Street, and the remainder of the site boundary 
is almost entirely encompassed by the river edges of the Spodden and Roch. The site 
is currently accessed off Mellor Street. 
 

The site was last in use as a temporary car park for the local college which lies to the 
north east. Originally the site comprised was a high density 19th Century industrial 
buildings which had become derelict and subsequently demolished as part of the 
previous proposal to open up the site for retail use.   The application site is allocated 
as a Mixed Employment Zone (Policy EC/3) within the Rochdale UDP  
The site itself is surrounded by a mix of buildings in various architectural styles and 
formats from the two storey Victorian terraced residential properties opposite to that of 
a more commercial nature particularly industrial and warehouse development  to the 
north  and west. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 

The application proposes the erection a Use Class A1 foodstore (named in the 
application as Aldi) together  and the erection of a retail unit (falling within any of Use 
Classes A1, A2, A3 or A5) together with associated vehicular access, car parking, 
serving area and hard and soft landscaping.  The details of the application are as 
follows:  

Page 18



 

� Erection of a single storey Class A1 food store – 1,781m2 Gross External 

Area (GEA), and, 1,254m2 Net Sales Area (Net); 

� Erection of a flexible use retail unit – 312m2 GEA.  

� 113 Car parking spaces, including 5 disabled spaces, 7 parent and child spaces 

and 12 staff only spaces.     

� 10 Short stay bicycle parking spaces (Sheffield cycle hoops) for customers, 

� Soft and hard landscaping works across the site; 

� Access to the car park via Mellor Street, lying opposite no’s 31-35 Mellor Street.  

� Service access will be taken from Mellor Street, lying adjacent to no. 56 Mellor 

Street.   

 
In terms of its design, the proposed Aldi store promotes a clean contemporary 
approach utilising extensive glazing to its southern and eastern elevations, and  
incorporating a modern cladding system.  The other unit proposes a similar 
appearance and both buildings would be single storey.   
 
Deliveries will be required on every day that the Aldi store is open for trade, 
including Sundays and Bank Holidays. The proposed servicing hours are : -  
 

� 06:00 hours to 23:00 hours – Mondays to Saturdays 

� 08:00 hours to 17:00 hours – Sundays 

 
Servicing for both stores will be taken from Mellor Street and it will be separate from 
the entrance into the main car park which lies further to the east. The servicing area, 
which will be located on the store’s northern elevation will incorporate a large loading 
bay and a roller shutter access door.  The smaller unit can also be served from its rear 
elevation.   
 
The proposed stores would be open seven days a week and the proposed opening 

hours are:- 

� 08:00 hours to 22:00 hours – Mondays to Saturdays 

� 09:00 hours to 17:00 hours – Sundays 

 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
 

National Guidance 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 

The Department for Communities and Local Government published the NPPF on 27 
March 2012.  The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and 
how these are expected to be applied.   
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 
The government published its NPPG on 6 March 2014. This is intended to 
complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning guidance, whilst 

Page 19



rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning Circulars and 
advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the NPPG or 
other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where appropriate. 
 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP):  
 

Policy G/D/1 (Defined Urban Area) 

G/EC/1  Employment Land Supply 

EC/3  Mixed Employment Zones 
 
G/S/1  Hierarchy and Role of Centres  

S/8  Retail Developments outside town, district and local centres 

S/10  Food and Drink Outlets  

G/A/1  Accessibility 

A/2  New Development  - Accessibility Hierarchy  

A/3  New Development  - Access for Pedestrians and Disabled People 

A/4  New Development – Access for Cyclists 

A/7  New Development – Access for Service Vehicles 

A/9  New Development - Access for General Traffic  

A/10  New Development – Provision of Parking 

A/11  New Development - Transport Assessments 

G/BE/1 Design Quality 

BE/2  Design Criteria for New Development  

BE/7  Street Furniture and the Public Realm 

BE/8  Landscaping in New Development  

G/EM/1 Environmental Protection and Pollution Control 

EM/3  Noise and New Development  

EM/4  Contaminated Land 

EM/7  Development and Flood Risk 

EM/8  Protection of Surface and Ground Water 

 

Page 20



G/EM/12 Renewable Energy and Energy Conservation 

EM/13  Energy Efficiency and New Development  

G/NE/1 Nature Conservation 

NE/2 Designated Sites of Ecological and Geological / Geomorphological 

Importance 

NE/3  Biodiversity and Development  

NE/4  Protected Species 

G/NE/5 Landscape and Woodlands 

NE/8  Development Affecting Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows.  

Supplementary Planning Documents 

Biodiversity and Development (SPD) 

Energy and New Development (SPD) 

RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 
2003/D42320 - Outline application for the erection of a non-food retail unit (2323 sq m) 
and a two storey office building unit (1161 sq m).  This application was refused by the 
Rochdale Township Planning Sub Committee on the grounds that: -  
 
The application site is allocated in the adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan as 
an Older Primary Employment Zone.  Policy EC/2 of the UDP permits uses within 
Class B1 (business/offices), Class B2 (industry), Class B8 (storage/distribution), 
builders and plumbers merchants, timber suppliers, plant hire depots, motor trade type 
uses and other outlets providing a service to the trade, provided they meet the 
additional criteria set out in the policy.  The only other uses permitted are those that 
are ancillary and complementary (in terms of size and function) to the above uses.  
The proposed retail unit of 2323 square metres cannot be regarded as being ancillary 
to the permitted uses.  The proposed retail unit is therefore contrary to Policy EC/2 of 
the adopted UDP and there are no material considerations to justify granting planning 
permission.” 
This application was subsequently allowed on appeal and the Planning Inspector 
considered that the proposed development would not harm the objectives of 
development plan policy regarding the supply of employment land and would 
contribute to the retention of employment in the area and upheld the appeal.   
 
2006/D46936 – Application of reserved matters (D42320) in respect of the erection of 
a non food retail unit and office. Approved.  
 
2007/D50053 – Full application for the erection of a non-food retail unit and adult 
learning centre.  Approved  
 

Page 21



2008/D50495 – Full application for the erection of a non food retail unit and adult 
learning centre.  Approved.  
 
2010/D53252 - Application For New Planning Permission To Replace Extant Planning 
Permission D42320 For Outline Application For Non-Food Retail Unit And Office Block 
With Associated Car Parking, Servicing And Landscaping Including New Bridge 
Across The River Roch. Approved. 
 
2010/D53753 - Outline Application (Including Access, Layout & Scale) For Mixed Use 
Development For A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, And B1(A) Uses.  Approved. 
 
2013/00491 - Reserved Matters Application (For Appearance, Scale and Landscaping) 
following outline permission (D53252) for non-food retail unit and office block with 
associated car parking, servicing and landscaping including new bridge across the 
River Roch.  Approved. 
 
2014/00225 – Application for reserved matters following outline permission 10/D53753 
(for appearance and landscaping) for a mixed use development comprising of A1, A2, 
A3, A4, A5 and B1 (a) uses. Approved. 
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 

Strategic Planning - Given that the requirement to demonstrate need is no longer as 
significant in terms of national guidance it is important to place a greater emphasis on 
the impact on vitality and viability of the existing centre and on the wider regeneration 
and economic benefits of the scheme.  It is considered that the creation of new jobs, 
improved retail choice and the regeneration of a site in a key gateway location are 
significant benefits.  The development would not result in a significant adverse impact 
on Rochdale Town Centre and it is acceptable with regards to policies EC/3 and S/8 
as well as the NPPF. 
 
Head of Highways and Engineering – It is commented that the new access points as 
designed on the submitted plans, have sufficient visibility and space to safely operate 
for these purposes. Furthermore it is considered the proposed number of car parking 
spaces to be provided would meet the expected demand associated with a foodstore 
of the scale proposed.  The site would be provided with segregated service provision 
and the development will not have a significant negative impact upon the local network 
capacity. A condition is recommended which requires the disused access points into 
the site from Mellor Street to be reconstructed.   
 
Environment Agency - The Environment Agency has reviewed the submitted FRA 
and have objected to the proposal on the grounds that the proposal encroaches within 
the 8m easement along the River Spodden and River Roch corridors. 
At the time of writing this report the discussions between the applicant and the 
Environment Agency are on-going and it is expected that the objection can be 
overcome. The final comments and any suggested conditions will be reported verbally 
to Members at the Committee Meeting. 
 
Environmental Health (Contamination) – No objections but request a condition be 
imposed which requires site investigation and assessment.  
 

Page 22



Environmental Health (Noise and Air) – No objections 
 
Greater Manchester Police Architectural Liaison Unit – No comment.  
 
Natural England – No comment  
 
United Utilities – No objection and request a condition be imposed which requires 
details of the disposal of foul and surface water to be agreed.  
 
Great Manchester Ecology Unit – No objection 
 
Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue – No objections  
 
Greater Manchester Archaeological Service – Request a condition be imposed 
which requires a written scheme of investigation to be prepared.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 

The neighbouring properties have been notified, site notices have been posted and 
the application has been advertised in the local press.  Although no representations 
specifically objecting to or supporting the development  have been received, one letter 
of comment has been received from the occupier of no. 52 Mellor Street which is 
summarised below:- 
 

� In accordance with the terms of the lease the passageways at the side and rear 
of no. 52 Mellor Street should not be obstructed or built upon.   
 

In response to the above comment, the proposed development would not encroach 
onto the passageways but this is a private matter between the occupier of this 
property and the developer and not a material planning consideration. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

This section of the report includes the analysis of the merits of the application against 
the relevant polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the 
adopted Rochdale Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant 
material planning considerations. 

Principle of the development 

The application site is allocated as a Mixed Employment Zone (Policy EC/3) within the 
Rochdale UDP and also lies within the Defined Urban Area (Policy G/D/1). It is 
therefore considered that UDP Policies EC/3 (Mixed Employment Zone) and S/8 
(Retail Development outside Town, District and Local Centres) are of greatest 
relevance to the principle of retail development in this location. Policy S/8 relates to 
retail development outside of town, district and local centres and provides criteria 
against which retail proposals of this nature will be tested. 
 
Policy EC/3 seeks to promote B1, B2, B8, Sui-generis, leisure and small scale 
(industrial based) retail development on the application site. It also allows for the 
provision of alternative uses (such as retail) subject to two criteria being met; (i) 

Page 23



that the scheme is ancillary and complementary (both in terms of size and function) to 
the industrial and business nature of the employment area; or (ii) 
that the development forms part of a wider regeneration proposal supported by 
the Council within the regeneration priority areas defined by policy G/R/1.  The 
proposed uses do not fall within one of the accepted forms of development within 
policy EC/3 and neither does the development form part of a wider regeneration 
proposal supported by the Council.  Furthermore the scheme it cannot be considered 
as being ancillary and complementary to this employment area and therefore I 
conclude that the proposal is contrary to the requirements of policy EC/3.   

Although the proposal does not comply with policy EC/3, it must also be 
acknowledged that the principle of retail development has already been established on 
the site through planning permission Ref. 10/D53753. This consent remains extant 
and could theoretically deliver an equivalent quantum of retail floorspace to that 
proposed as part of this planning application. This represents an important material 
consideration in the Local Authority’s application of Policy EC/3 given that a precedent 
has now been set and ‘non-employment’ uses have been allowed in this location. 
Also, National policy (NPPF) is now more flexible with regards the uses that are 
considered appropriate on traditional ‘employment’ land; provided that they generate 
jobs and the uses in question do not conflict with other key planning policies. For 
example, retail is an employment generating use which is consistent with the core 
objectives of an employment allocation. 
 
To summarise, although the proposal is contrary to the requirements of policy EC/3, 
the principle of retail development has already been established on the site and this 
represents an important material consideration.  Furthermore the NPPF takes a more 
flexible approach to employment generating uses, encompassing both ‘B Use Classes’ 
and ‘main town centre uses’ within the same bracket of ‘Economic Development’ and 
discouraging the long-term safeguarding of land for purely ‘B Use Classes’. 
Accordingly, the proposed would be permissible on the above site in principle, subject 
to compliance being demonstrated with the standard retail policy tests which apply to 
schemes in edge-of-centre locations. 
 
Policy S/8 retail development outside a town, district or local centre 
 
This application is for a retail development outside a town, district or local centre and 
therefore policy S/8 of the adopted UDP is relevant.  This policy sets out criteria for 
when retail development outside existing centres would be permitted.  
Need  

Criterion a) of this policy requires that the applicant demonstrate the need for the 
development.  Although specific reference to evidence need is not included within the 
NPPF it is still important to consider need in terms of overall retail capacity. The 
additional retail capacity figures set out in the Rochdale Retail and Leisure Study 
(NPL, 2010) has already taken into account the retail floor space proposed through the 
extant planning permission at the proposed site.  Therefore, it is not necessary to 
make a further assessment on retail capacity or need. 

 

 

 

Page 24



Sequential Approach 

Criterion b) of policy S/8 requires that the applicant demonstrates that the sequential 
approach to site selection has been adopted and that no suitable sites or buildings that 
are sequentially preferable are available or are likely to become available within the 
boundaries of Rochdale Town Centre, or on a site which could reasonably 
accommodate this scale and type of foodstore development on the edge of the centre 
within a reasonable period of time.  Such a sequential assessment has been 
undertaken by HOW on behalf of the applicant and the details of it are summarised 
below: - 

1. Town Centre East, Rochdale. 

The site identified in the Retail Study occupies a large part of the town centre 
(adjacent to the Wheatsheaf Centre) and extends to 5.7ha. Much of the site is 
allocated for comprehensive mixed-use development through Policy R/4(e) of the 
Rochdale UDP. Parts of the site have been redeveloped or are pending 
redevelopment; for example, Number One Riverside and the town centre’s new bus 
station have now been completed. With regards the remainder of the site, plans for a 
new retail and leisure development on the site of the former municipal buildings and 
bus station are being progressed by Genr8 and Rochdale MBC  
 
With regards the site’s suitability, this site is less than 100m from Aldi’s existing 
foodstore on Entwistle Road. This would make taking space in the town centre 
scheme unviable on the basis that the store would merely replicate the nearby 
offer – leading to substantial overlap in terms of the catchment served. 
 
In addition, at this time the site cannot be considered to be ‘available’.  It is expected 
that Genr8 would deliver a comprehensive mixed scheme and given that a planning 
application for it has yet to be submitted a timescale for delivery may well be several 
years away.   

Having regard to this evidence, it is considered that the town centre redevelopment 
site is not a sequentially preferable alternative to the application 
site.  

2. Central Retail Park, Oldham Road  

Central Retail Park extends to 3.3ha and is located to the south of Rochdale Town 
Centre. It contains predominantly non-food ‘bulky’ goods retailers and benefits from 
planning permission for expansion to provide a further 8 non-food retail units 
(11,677sqm). 
 
This site occupies an out-of-centre location which is not materially closer to the 
Primary Shopping Area of Rochdale Town Centre than the application site. On this 
basis it is unrealistic to suggest that Central Retail Park is sequentially superior in 
terms of its location. With regards suitability; whilst the land benefits from planning 
permission for non-food retail development this does not extend to food retail 
development.  In terms of availability, whilst the site has planning permission for 8 
non-food retail units, it has been vacant for several years now and therefore it is 
unknown whether it would be available within reasonable timescale.   
 

Page 25



Having regard to the above evidence, it is concluded that the site is not a sequentially 
preferable alternative to the application site. 
 
3. Molesworth Street/Water Street, Rochdale 
 
This vacant site extends to 0.5ha and is situated at the corner of Molesworth 
Street and Water Street to the east of the town centre. In terms of the site’s 
suitability, at 0.5ha is too small to accommodate the proposal. Furthermore, the site is 
just 50m south of Aldi’s existing store on Entwisle Road. This renders the site unviable 
on the basis that an Aldi store on it would merely replicate the retailer’s existing offer 
 

Whilst the site does appear to be available for development, the suitability constraints 
identified confirm that it is not a sequentially preferable alterative to the application site. 
 
4. Land at Hugh Street/John Street, Rochdale 
 
This cleared site extends to 0.3ha and is bound by John Street, George Street and 
Hugh Street. The site occupies an out-of-centre location to the east of the town centre. 
 
In terms of the site’s suitability, at 0.3ha is too small to accommodate the proposals. 
Furthermore, the site is just 100m north of Aldi’s existing store on Entwistle Road, 
rendering it unviable on the basis that it would merely replicate Aldi’s existing offer. A 
final suitability constraint is the site’s topography, with its sloping gradient limiting the 
potential for it to accommodate a retail unit of any real scale. 
 
Having regard to this evidence, it is clear that the site is not a sequentially preferable 
alternative to the application site. It fails both the tests of ‘suitability’ 
and ‘availability’. 

Officers are satisfied that the applicant has demonstrated that no sequentially 
preferable alternative sites currently exist that are available to develop within a 
reasonable period of time and are suitable to accommodate the scale and nature of 
the development proposed.     

Impact on the vitality and viability of existing town, district and local centres 

In considering whether the proposal is acceptable in policy terms it is also important to 
consider criterion c) of policy S/8 which relates to the impact on the vitality and viability 
of existing town, district and local centres, in this instance specifically Rochdale Town 
Centre. It is noteworthy that Paragraph 27 of The Framework states that where an 
application is likely to give rise to “a significant adverse impact” should be refused. The 
implication being that a retail impact which is merely ‘adverse’ is not a direct reason for 
refusal and is capable of being weighed against positive social, economic and 
environmental impacts in the overall planning balance. 

The applicant considers that the proposed Aldi would have a limited impact on the 
vitality and viability of the district centre.  An important element of the argument 
regarding limited impact is based on the discount nature of the Aldi foodstore and the 
fact that it does not sell a wider range of products that would be the case in a more 
‘traditional’ supermarket.  For example, Aldi would have a limited product line of 
around 1200 products whereas a larger supermarket might have around 40,000 
products.  The proposed store would not sell newspapers, magazines or tobacco, 

Page 26



would not have in-store butchers or bakers nor have ancillary services that are found 
in some supermarkets such as a pharmacy or dry cleaners.  It is also noted that 
typically space for non food goods is limited to no more than 20%.  Whilst it is difficult 
to evidence how this difference from more ‘traditional’ supermarkets reduces its 
impact, it is considered that the absence of such goods and services within the 
proposal means that a store such as Aldi is less likely to compete with shops within 
Rochdale Town Centre thereby preserving its vitality,  

In terms of trade diversion the greatest convenience goods diversions are anticipated 
from the out-of-centre foodstores surrounding Rochdale Town Centre. This includes 
the Asda store on Dane Street (as the largest and closest competitor) from which 
£2.4m (5.3%) will be diverted, the Tesco store at Silk Street from which £1.7m (3.3%)  
will be diverted, and other out-of-centre stores surrounding the town centre (including 
Aldi, Entwistle Road) from which £1.0m will be diverted. The allocation of trade to 
these facilities has been based on their role as ‘main’ food shopping destinations and 
their popularity with those residing in the defined catchment area. Approximately 10% 
(£0.7m) of the proposal’s convenience goods turnover is predicted to be diverted from 
foodstores within Rochdale Town Centre. The trade predicted to be diverted from town 
centre facilities is considered to be proportionate to their roles as convenience goods 
shopping destinations, with the Rochdale Retail Study showing them to be more 
popular ‘top-up’ food shopping destinations than ‘bulk’ or ‘main’ food shopping 
destinations. The Aldi foodstore proposed will compete almost exclusively for ‘main’ 
food shoppers, not ‘top-up’ shoppers, with its retail offer seeking to replicate the most 
regularly purchased items within a family’s weekly food shopping trip. 
 
In terms of comparison trade diversion, at just 483sqm in total, it is evident that the 
comparison goods element of the scheme’s sales area will be ancillary to its 
convenience goods offer and no adverse trading consequences are likely to result 
from the comparison goods element of the proposed Aldi foodstore and flexible use 
unit 
 
In Officers view, it is unlikely that a sustainable argument can be made, when 
balanced against other regeneration benefits put forward in support of the application, 
to conclude the proposed development would adversely impact on the viability and 
vitality of Rochdale Town Centre.  The town centre is serving an important role within 
the local retail hierarchy in meeting the day-to-day needs of the resident population 
and this will continue irrespective of the application proposals. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, Officers consider that the proposal could offer benefits to 
the Town Centre through increased linked trips.    To increase the accessibility of the 
site with the town centre, the applicant has agreed to make an off-site contribution of 
£50,000 to improve the public realm between the site and the town centre.  The public 
realm improvements will consist of the following works: -  

� Improved lighting to enhance the aesthetics of the town centre river reopening 

scheme   

� Improved landscaping along the Esplanade and within the green spaces which 

adjoin it.  

� Investment in Public Art  

 

Page 27



The contribution will be secured within a Section 106 planning obligation linked to the 
granting of planning permission.   

The other criteria within policy S/8 relate to access, amenity and location.  In terms of 
location, the site is very sustainable and it lies within walking distance of the town 
centre and from the residential wards of Spotland and Milkstone. 

The proposed flexible use unit,  

The proposed ‘flexible use’ retail unit will have a Gross Internal Area of 228sqm 

and an estimated Net Sales Area of 232sqm. The applicant has confirmed that at the 

time of this planning application’s submission it is not possible to conclusively verify 

the future occupant of the proposed unit. As such, the applicant is seeking a degree of 

flexibility to allow the unit to trade within classes A1 (Retail), A2 (Financial and 

Professional Services), A3 (Restaurants) or A5 (Hot Food Takeaway) upon first 

occupation. This is consistent with the flexibility afforded to the retail scheme permitted 

on the site in 2011 (10/D53753) and will maximise the prospects of the unit being let at 

the point of the Aldi store’s opening.  It is considered that the flexible unit would not 

have an adverse impact upon any existing, committed or planning investment within 

any nearby centres and would be compatible with the surrounding land uses, in 

accordance with the requirements of UDP policies S/8 and S/10 

 
Summary   
 
Much of this site has been vacant or underused for a number of years and the 
proposal offers a real opportunity to provide investment into the area on a gateway 
into the Borough.  The proposed units will provide additional job opportunities and the 
regeneration of the site with modern buildings and good quality landscaping has the 
potential to enhance a key gateway location 

Given the importance of encouraging economic growth set out in NPPF, it is 
considered that the economic benefits should be afforded significant weight when 
balanced against other material factors, in considering the appropriateness of the 
scheme in planning terms.    

Having regard to the economic and regenerative benefits of this development in this 
sustainable location, given the lack of any sequentially preferable alternative available 
sites, and given that the vitality and viability of the town centre would not be 
unacceptably harmed, the principle of this proposal is considered acceptable and in 
compliance with  the requirements of policy S/8. 

The proposed layout, design and appearance of the store 

The layout of the site is relatively simple with the proposed store extending parallel 
with Mellor Street. Both stores are single storey in height and the entrance doors to 
them would face across the car park.   

The overall design of the proposal has been developed in a contemporary modern 
style. A simple palette of local materials have been utilised in the form of a 
combination of large areas of glazing and cladding alongside a projecting canopy 
which lies across the front elevations. 

Page 28



Clear and usable footpaths would extend to and from the entrances into the units and 
the site would be visually enhanced by the introduction of landscaping.  The 
landscaping will consist of ornamental shrub planting and new trees.   

It is considered that the appearance and form of the proposed units are acceptable 
and they would integrate well with the existing developments as well as improving the 
visual qualities of this gateway site. The appearance of the units would be 
complemented by the proposed landscaping which would surround it. Considering the 
above it is considered that the proposal complies with the advice as set out within the 
UDP and the NPPF. 

Effect on residents living conditions 

Located to the south of the site lie the front elevations of no’s 3-39 Mellor Street which 
are pavement fronted terraced dwellings.  The front elevations of these dwellings 
would overlook the proposed car park and the junction which would serve the site. 
Mellor Street is a busy main road which serves Rochdale Town Centre and it is 
considered that the vehicular coming and goings from the site would not unduly impact 
upon the living conditions of the residents of no’s 3-39 Mellor Street. 
 
The proposed hours of operation are 08:00 hours to 22:00 hours – Mondays to 
Saturdays, and 09:00 hours to 17:00 hours on Sundays. It is considered that these 
opening hours are satisfactory as to ensure that the amenities of nearby residents are 
protected and a condition is recommended which allows the store to trade only 
between the above mentioned hours. 
 
The proposed servicing access is located adjacent to no. 56 Mellor Street and the 
proposed hours of servicing sought are 06:00 hours to 23:00 hours – Mondays to 
Saturdays and 08:00 hours to 16:00 hours – Sundays.  In the interest of protecting the 
amenities of the adjacent residents a condition is recommended that would only allow 
deliveries to take place after 07:00 hours and not after 22:00 hours – Mondays to 
Friday and 08:00 hours to 16:00 hours – Sundays.  A further condition is 
recommended which requires the provision of a suitable acoustic fence around the 
side and rear elevations of no’s 50- 56 Mellor Street.   The details of these boundary 
treatments would be secured by a planning condition to ensure an appropriate and 
acceptable level of mitigation would be achieved. On this basis it is considered that 
deliveries to the store and the second retail unit could take place without detriment to 
the amenity of residential properties. 
 
External lighting will be provided within the car park and servicing area. In order to 
ensure the external lighting does not cause nuisance to any nearby residents, a 
condition is recommended requiring full details of the external lighting to be agreed by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
It is unavoidable that major building works will have an impact on living conditions, by 
way of working hours, noise, lights etc.  To help reduce the impact of the construction 
phase of the development a condition is imposed which restricts all demolition and 
construction works to between 07:30 hours and 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and 
from 09:00 hours until 14:00 hours on Saturdays, with no working on Sundays or bank 
holidays.  
 

Page 29



Proposed access and parking arrangements 

A Transport Statement has been submitted with the application which examines the 
existing transport network in the vicinity of the development site, it outlines the 
development proposal and it considers the resulting impact on the existing transport 
network.  

Policy A/8 of the adopted UDP seeks to ensure that new development does not have a 
detrimental impact on the existing highway network in respect of safety of the existing 
highway network (particularly pedestrians and disabled people), the environmental 
impact on residential properties adjacent to the highway network, or substantially 
increase congestion. Policy A/9 seeks to ensure safe and convenient access for 
general traffic (cars, motorbikes and commercial vehicles) by making sure that certain 
road junctions are suitable for the volumes and characteristics of traffic that use them. 
Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that, ‘development should only be prevented or 
refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development 
are severe’.    

The Head of Highways and Engineering raises no objection to the proposal, subject to 
the delivery of the improved access arrangements and agrees with the findings of the 
submitted Transport Assessment which confirms that the development proposed is 
unlikely to give rise to a significant material impact on the highway network. In the 
context of the NPPF, it is considered that the levels of traffic generated for a 
development of this scale would not in itself be so severe as advocated within the 
NPPF as to justify a refusal of planning permission in this case.  

It is considered that the number of car parking spaces proposed (113 in total) is 
sufficient to meet the demand which would be generated for the proposed units of the 
scale and nature of that proposed. The car parking spaces lie in convenient locations 
and therefore it is not expected that any vehicles visiting the development would park 
on neighbouring highways. 

Servicing for both stores will be taken from Mellor Street and it will be separate from 
the entrance into the main car park which lies further to the east. The servicing area 
for the Aldi store, will be located adjacent to the store’s northern elevation and 
servicing of the smaller unit could be taken from its rear elevation. It is considered that 
the servicing arrangements associated with the proposal would operate safely, in 
accordance with Policy A/7 of the UDP. 
 
The proposal is considered to provide suitable parking, servicing and access 
arrangements and there would be no adverse impact on the highway network.  As 
such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with the requirements of policies 
A/8 and A/9. 

Flood Risk  

As set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, inappropriate development in 
areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas 
at highest risk, but where development is necessary, making it safe without increasing 
flood risk elsewhere. For these purposes:  
 

Page 30



� areas at risk of flooding” means land within Flood Zones 2 and 3; or land within 
Flood Zone 1 which has critical drainage problems and which has been notified 
to the local planning authority by the Environment Agency;  

� flood risk” means risk from all sources of flooding - including from rivers and the 
sea, directly from rainfall on the ground surface and rising groundwater, 
overwhelmed sewers and drainage systems, and from reservoirs, canals and 
lakes and other artificial sources  

 
Policy EM/7 requires that development will not be permitted in areas identified as flood 
plains, or other areas where development could contribute to increased flood risk  
 
Although the Environment Agency have not objected to the proposal on flood risk 

grounds they have objected to it on the grounds that the layout encroaches within the 

8m easement along the River Spodden and River Roch Corridors. At the time of 

writing this report the discussions between the applicant and the Environment Agency 

are on-going and it is expected that the objection can be overcome. The final 

comments and any suggested conditions will be reported verbally to Members at the 

Committee Meeting. 

Protected Species  

A phase 1 habitat survey has been submitted with the application which confirms  the 
site is not covered by or adjacent to any site which is designated on account of its 
nature conservation importance.  The most significant issue with respect to 
development of the site is the potential for adverse effects on the adjacent rivers (the 
River Spodden and the River Roch).  However potential effects would be avoided by 
the implementation of appropriate pollution prevention methods and the retention or 
replacement of the bunds which are present along the river’s edge.  On this basis 
there are no ecological reasons why the development cannot take place. The Greater 
Manchester Ecological Unit have not raised any objection to the application. It is 
therefore considered that the proposal complies with the requirements of UDP policies 
NE/3 and NE/4 of the adopted UDP.  

Noise 

In order to meet acceptable levels of noise across the application site, a condition is 
recommended that requires noise from any equipment to be restricted to levels which 
would not cause a noise disturbance to nearby residents. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Having regard to the economic and regenerative benefits of this development in this 
sustainable location, given the lack of any sequentially preferable alternative available 
sites, and given that the vitality and viability of Rochdale Town Centre would not be 
unacceptably harmed, the  proposal is considered acceptable and in compliance with  
the requirements of policy S/8 and the advice as set out in the NPPF.  

The internal car parking and servicing arrangements are considered to be satisfactory 
and there would be no adverse impact on the highway network with an suitable access 
formed onto Mellor Street.  The development would not have an adverse impact of the 
living conditions of the nearby residents and a number of conditions are recommended 

Page 31



which restrict working hours and service deliveries and to mitigate the impact of 
development on nearby residents.  The development would have no adverse impact 
upon the ecological value of the adjoining rivers and by reason of its scale, position 
and design it would improve the visual qualities of this gateway site.  
 
Considering the above, Officers are satisfied that the proposal adheres to the relevant 
advice and policies within the adopted UDP and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Committee resolve: 
 
That Members are minded to GRANT planning permission subject to: 
 
1. The completion of a Section 106 planning obligation in order to secure: 

 
a)  The applicant makes a commuted sum payment to be used to upgrade  the 
public realm between the site and Rochdale Town Centre.  

2. That the Council enters into an agreement under the provisions of Section 106 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate legislation 
with regard to the matters set out above; 

3. The Head of Planning being authorised to issue the decision notice on 
completion of the Section 106 Agreement; 

and subject to the following conditions and reasons:- 
 
 1 The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

beginning with the date of this permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with the requirements of section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
 2 This permission relates to the following plans:-   
   
 1147MID-99 Rev B  - Red Lined OS Plan   
 1147MID-100 Rev C – Site as Existing   
 1147MID-101 Rev C  - Site as Proposed  
 1147MID-102 Rev A  - GA Plan as Propose  
 1147MID-103 – Elevations as Proposed  
 V1147L01 Rev B – Landscape Plan     
   
 and the development shall not be carried out other than in complete 

accordance with these drawings hereby approved.  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of any doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard 

of development in accordance with policies of the Rochdale Unitary 
Development Plan as listed below on this decision notice. 

 

Page 32



 3 The development hereby permitted shall not take place until a scheme to 
regulate surface water run-off has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall be fully 
implemented and subsequently maintained, in accordance with the 
timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the scheme or within any other 
period as may subsequently agreed, in writing, by the local planning authority.  

     
 Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and ensure future 

maintenance of the surface water drainage system in order to comply with 
Unitary Development Plan EM/7 and the National Planning Policy Framework 

 
 4 No development shall take place until details of the means of foul water 

disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The details, as approved, shall be implemented in full before the 
development hereby permitted is first brought into use.    

     
 Reason.  To secure a satisfactory system of drainage and to prevent pollution 

of the water environment in accordance with Policies EM/7 and EM/8 of the 
Council’s Unitary Development Plan. 

 
 5 Noise from any plant and equipment used in conjunction with the development 

shall not exceed 50 dB(A) over 15 minute Leq measured at 10 metres from any 
plant installed on either of the units hereby approved.    

     
 Reason:  To protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the adjacent 

dwellings in compliance with policy  EM/3 - Noise and New Development of the 
Rochdale Unitary Development Plan. 

 
 6 The units hereby approved shall not open for trade or business before 08:00 

nor after 22:00 hours Mondays to Saturdays and not before 09:00 hours nor 
after 17:00 on a Sunday.    

     
 Reason.  In order to prevent nuisance arising, in accordance with policy BE/2 of 

the Council’s Unitary Development Plan.   
 
 7 Deliveries to the units shall not take place before 07:00 nor after 22:00 hours 

Mondays to Saturdays and not before 08:00 hours nor after 16:00 on a Sunday.  
     
 Reason.  In order to prevent nuisance arising, in accordance with policy BE/2 of 

the Council’s Unitary Development Plan. 
 
 8 The hours of operation of the construction phase of the development and any 

traffic movements to or from the site associated with the development hereby 
permitted shall be limited to 07:30 hours to 1900 hours Monday to Friday, and 
07:30 hours to 1300 hours on Saturday and no construction or demolition work 
or vehicle movements associated with construction or demolition shall take 
place on Sundays or Bank / Public Holidays.   

     
 Reason. To protect the amenities of the residents of the adjacent dwellings, in 

accordance with Unitary Development Plan Policies BE/2 and EM/14. 
 

Page 33



 9 No development shall take place until a landscaping scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such a 
scheme shall include details of the type, species, siting, planting distances and 
the programme of planting of trees and shrubs.  The scheme of planting, as 
approved, shall be carried out in accordance with an agreed timetable and the 
areas which are landscaped shall be retained as landscaped areas thereafter. 
Any trees or shrubs removed, dying, being severely damaged or becoming 
seriously diseased within three years of planting shall be replaced by trees or 
shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 

     
 Reason: In order to achieve a satisfactory level of landscaping in the interests 

of the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies BE/2 and BE/8 of the 
Council's Unitary Development Plan. 

 
10 No development shall take place until a scheme for the post construction 'hard' 

landscaping treatment of the site shall has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include details of 
the proposed surface treatment of the parking areas, paths or other hard-
surfaced areas and any street furniture, (including any benches, lighting 
columns, bollards, bins and gates etc).The approved details shall thereafter be 
fully implemented in accordance with a timescale that has been agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

     
 Reason: To secure a satisfactory standard of development in accordance with 

Policies BE/2, BE/7, BE/8, A/3, A/4, A/9 of the Council's Unitary Plan and 
because insufficient details were submitted of these matters as part of the 
application. 

 
11 No external lighting shall be installed on the buildings or elsewhere on the site 

unless a scheme for such lighting has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The submitted scheme shall include 
details of LUX levels from the floodlights and any necessary cowls or baffles to 
prevent light spillage into neighbouring properties. The approved scheme shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained as such 
thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

     
 Reason. In the interest of visual amenities and to prevent nuisance arising in 

accordance with policies BE/2 and BE/18 of the Council’s Unitary Development 
Plan. 

 
12 Details of the design, external appearance and position of any external plant 

terminals and associated equipment to be installed on the buildings shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before first 
installation.   The external plant terminals and its associated equipment shall be 
installed in accordance with the approved details and thereby retained as such 
unless a variation is subsequently submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.   

     
 Reason:  In the interest of visual amenity and to prevent nuisance arising in 

accordance with Policies BE/2 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan. 
 

Page 34



13 No development shall take place until full details of the treatment of all 
boundaries, including details or samples of materials to be used have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme 
and to an agreed timescale and retained thereafter.   

     
 Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual 

amenity in accordance with Policies H/3 and BE/2 of the Council’s Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
14 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans and Conditions 2 and 

13 of this permission, no development shall take place until full details of an 
acoustic fence to be erected on the north and east facing boundary of the 
passageway which extends around nos. 50 to 56 Mellor Street has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved acoustic fence shall be installed in full accordance with the approved 
details before either of the retail units hereby permitted are first brought into use 
and retained thereafter.    

     
 Reason:  To protect the residential amenities of the occupiers of the adjacent 

dwellings in compliance with policy EM/3 of the Rochdale Unitary Development 
Plan. 

 
15 No development shall take place until an investigation and risk assessment (in 

addition to any assessment provided with the planning application) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment shall investigate the nature and extent of any contamination on the 
site (whether or not it originates on the site). The assessment shall be 
undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 
development takes place. The submitted report shall include:  

   
 i)  a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination  
 ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:  
                 •  human health,  
                 • property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, 

pets, woodland, and service lines and pipes,  
                 • adjoining land,  
                 • groundwaters and surface waters,  
                 • ecological systems,  
                 • archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
 iii) where unacceptable risks are identified, an appraisal of remedial options and 

proposal of the preferred option(s) to form a remediation strategy for the site. 
   
 The development shall thereafter be carried out in full accordance with the duly 

approved remediation strategy and a verification report submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any of the building(s) 
hereby approved are first occupied.   

   
 Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment and to ensure the safe 

development of the site in the interests of the amenity of future occupiers in 

Page 35



accordance with Unitary Development Plan policies EM/4, EM/8 and BE/2, and 
the National Planning Policy Framework.   

 
16 No development shall first take place until a scheme for the design (including 

suitable visibility splays), construction and drainage of the two proposed 
junctions with the site and Mellor Street has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be fully 
implemented before the either of the retail units are first brought into use and 
the highway boundary forming the visibility splays shall be kept clear of all 
obstructions in excess of 0.6m metre in height.   

     
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policies A/9 

and BE/2 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan. 
 
17 Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, no development shall 

take place until the locations of the cycle stands and motorcycle spaces have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
approved cycle stands and motorcycle spaces shall be provided in full 
accordance with the approved details prior to either of the retail units hereby 
permitted first being brought into use and shall be retained thereafter.  

     
 Reason. In the interest of providing safe and secure parking facilities, in 

accordance with Policy A/10 of the Council’s Unitary Development Plan. 
 
18 No development shall take place until a scheme for the design and construction 

of the proposed parking spaces and servicing area have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved details shall 
thereafter be fully implemented in accordance with a timescale that has been 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

     
 Reason.  In order to ensure that the site makes adequate provision for delivery 

vehicles and the parking arrangements are safe, in accordance with Policies 
A/7, A/9 A/10 and BE/2 of the Council’s Unitary Development Plan.   

 
19 The development hereby approved shall not take place until a scheme to 

reinstatement the footpaths along the section of Mellor Street which adjoins the 
site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full prior to the first 
use of any of the units hereby approved being first brought into use.   

     
 Reason.   In the interest of pedestrian safety, in accordance with Policy A/3 of 

the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan. 
 
20 No development shall take place until a programme of archaeological works to 

be undertaken in accordance with a Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The WSI 
shall cover the following:    

     
1. A phased programme and methodology of site investigation and 
recording to include:    

  - desk-based archaeological assessment    

Page 36



  - archaeological evaluation    
 - (where merited by the evaluation results) targeted area excavation and 

recording    
     
  2. A programme for post investigation assessment to include:  

  
  - analysis of the site investigation records and finds    

 - production of a final report on the significance of the archaeological 
interest represented.    

     
3. Provision for publication and dissemination of the analysis and report 
on the site investigation.    

     
4. Provision for archive deposition of the report, finds and records of the 
site investigation.    

     
5. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to 
undertake the works set out within the approved WSI.    

     
 Reason: In order to understand any heritage asset on the site and to make 

information about the archaeological heritage interest publicly accessible, in 
accordance with UDP Policy BE/10 and the NPPF.  

 
21 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority the 

development hereby approved shall achieve a ‘very good’ or ‘excellent’ Building 
Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Methodology (BREEAM) 
rating or equivalent. Where this BREEAM requirement is achieved, a post 
construction certificate confirming such an outcome, and detailing the energy 
supply technology installed within the development, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any part of the 
building is first occupied, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Where the BREEAM requirement is not achieved, a 
scheme to offset the impact of the development on the global environment, in 
accordance with the advice and standards set out in the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Document, “Energy and New Development” shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before any part of the building under construction is first occupied. The 
approved scheme shall thereafter be fully implemented before any part of the 
building is first occupied, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   

     
 Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and makes efficient use 

of energy, water and materials in accordance with Policy EM/13 of the Council’s 
Unitary Development Plan and the Council’s: Energy and New Development 
Supplementary Planning Document. 

 
 
Report Author Paul Ambrose 

Page 37


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	3 Setting of the Business Rates  Base 2015/16
	4 Calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2015/16
	Append. 1 for Calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2015/16

	5 L and R planning reports

